
Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.

Please ask for:
Helen Johnson

21 January 2019

Dear Councillor

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ESTATE MANAGEMENT APPEALS PANEL to be held on Wednesday 30 January 2019 
at 7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, 
Herts, AL8 6AE.

Yours faithfully

Corporate Director
Public Protection, Planning and Governance

A G E N D A
PART 1

1.  SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS 

To note any substitution of Members made in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules 19-22.

2.  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies.

3.  MINUTES 

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 5 December 
2018 (previously circulated).

4.  NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 9 
AND ANY ITEMS WITHDRAWN FROM THE AGENDA 

5.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS 

To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda.

Public Document Pack



6.  348 HOWLANDS WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL7 4HD - 6/2018/1861/EM - 
INSTALLATION OF 1 X REAR DORMER TO FACILITATE EXTENSION OF 
EXISTING LOFT (Pages 5 - 18)

The report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
sets out an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management (EM) Consent for the 
installation of one rear dormer to facilitate extension of existing loft.

7.  1 MIDDLEFIELD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY   AL7 4DQ - 6/2018/2537/EM - 
REMOVAL OF CHIMNEY STACK (Pages 19 - 28)

The report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
sets out an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management (EM) Consent for the 
removal of a chimney stack.

8.  5 HOWICKS GREEN WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL7 4RJ - 6/2018/2063/EM - 
REPLACE POLYCARBONATE CONSERVATORY ROOF WITH LIGHTWEIGHT 
TILED ROOF (Pages 29 - 42)

The report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
sets out appeal against the refusal of Estate Management (EM) Consent for the 
replacement of a polycarbonate conservatory roof with lightweight tiled roof.

9.  SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION 

10.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The Panel is asked to resolve:

That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for items 11 and 12 (if any) on the 
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information 
as defined in Section 100A(3) and Paragraphs 2 (Information likely to reveal the 
identity of an individual) and 6 (statutory notice or order) Part 1 of Schedule 12A of 
the said Act (as amended).

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.    

PART II

11.  UPDATE ON OUTSTANDING ENFORCEMENT CASES AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ENFORCEMENT ACTION UNDER THE TERMS OF 
THE MANAGEMENT SCHEME FOR WELWYN GARDEN CITY FOR BREACHES 
OF THAT SCHEME (Pages 43 - 58)

The exempt report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and 
Governance) updates Members with outstanding arbitration cases that were put 
before the Panel, up to and including 15 January 2019.



12.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN 

Circulation: Councillors S.Glick (Chairman)
H.Bower
H.Bromley
A.Chesterman

M.Cowan
P.Mabbott
L.Musk

Corporate Management Team
Press and Public (except Part II Items)

If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Helen 
Johnson, Governance Services on 01707 357467 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I
Main Author: Sarah Madyausiku 

Executive Member: Stephen Boulton
Wards: Howlands

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ESTATE MANAGEMENT SCHEME PANEL - 30 January 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE)

6/2018/1861/EM 

348 HOWLANDS WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL7 4HD

INSTALLATION OF 1 X REAR DORMER TO FACILITATE EXTENSION OF 
EXISTING LOFT

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs B Walton

1. Background

1.1 The appeal is against the refusal of Estate Management (EM) Consent for the 
Installation of 1 x rear dormer to facilitate extension of existing loft. The 
application (reference: 6/2018/1861/EM) was refused on the 27 September 2018 
for the following reason:

“The rear dormer window would be unacceptable by virtue of its width, scale and 
siting on the rear roof slope of the dwelling which is overtly visible from an number 
of properties in the area and from the public footpath to the east. The dormer 
would result in a visually discordant and incongruous feature that would be 
detrimental to the appearance of the house and wider area, failing to maintain 
and enhance the amenities and values of the Garden City in accordance with 
Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme”.

2. Site Description

2.1 The application site is a two storey mid terrace dwelling house, located on the 
north side of Howlands. The application property is located within a row of 13 
terraced houses. The rear of this terrace, and the appeal property itself, is open 
to public views from a public footpath that runs across the rear of the terrace to 
the east. 

3. The Proposal

3.1 The applicant’s proposal is to install a rear dormer to facilitate the extension of 
existing loft. The proposed rear dormer window would measure at approximately 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



5.2m in width and be set in 0.74m on the west side and 0.94m on the east side 
of the party walls of the adjoining properties. 

Its height would be at the ridge height of the main roof and not set down.

4. Policy

4.1. Estate Management Scheme Policies (October 2008)

EM1 – Extensions and Alterations

5. Representations Received

5.1.  No representations have been received.

6. Planning History

6.1 6/2018/1362/EM- July 2018 consent for the construction of 2 x rear dormer 
windows to facilitate extension of existing loft conversion. 

7. Discussion

7.1. This is an appeal against the refusal of EM consent. The appellant’s letter of 
appeal is attached at Appendix 1, and the original officer’s report for application 
reference 6/2018/1861/EM, is attached at Appendix 2.

7.2. The key issue in the determination of this appeal is the impact of the proposed 
rear dormer on the amenities and values of the surrounding area. The impact on 
the residential amenity of adjoining occupiers is considered acceptable.

7.3. In recognition of the importance of Welwyn Garden City as a unique town and in 
order to protect the amenities and values of the Garden City, the Estate 
Management Scheme was set up. The purpose of the Management Scheme and 
its importance to homeowners is to ensure that homes and street scenes are 
kept in harmony with the original design and concept of the town. 

7.4. Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme (EMS) states that extensions 
and alterations to existing buildings will only be allowed if they are in keeping with 
the design, appearance, materials and architectural detailing used in the existing 
building and do not have a detrimental impact on the amenities and values of the 
surrounding area. 

7.5. The appeal property is located within a terrace of 13 similarly designed 
properties. None of these properties have rear dormer windows. This property 
would be the first to have such an alteration in this group of 13.   

7.6. Policy EM1 aims for alterations to be in keeping with the existing property and 
not harm the values and amenities of the area. It is therefore essential that the 
uniformity in appearance of dwellings is maintained; in particular those features 
which are visible from the street scene.  

7.7. The refusal relates to the unacceptable width, scale and sitting of the proposed 
elongated dormer on the rear roof. In the Garden City for roof alterations such as 

Page 6



dormer windows, the Council has approved a new policy approach within the EM 
area which includes that consent will only be granted if the proposed alteration, 
when viewed from any surrounding public vantage point does not have a 
detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the street scene and the 
wider amenities and values of the area.

7.8. The quality of the architecture in this terrace of 13 dwellings has generally been 
maintained and it is of note that in July 2018, an application, which assessed two 
individual and smaller dormer windows covering less of the rear roof slope was 
approved. The approved rear elevation is attached as Appendix 3. 

7.9. Although not implemented, the consent remains extant. In the officer’s report in 
July 2018 it was stated: The proposed rear dormers would not be visible from 
public vantage points.  The appearance isn’t overbearing to the rear as two 
smaller dormers are proposed rather than one large dormer on a mid-terrace 
dwelling.  It is clear from this assessment that a larger dormer was not considered 
appropriate here. 

7.10. Rather than two individual dormer windows as approved in July 2018, the 
introduction of a one elongated rear dormer would represent a more dominating 
form of development to the rear roofslope of this property. The elongated dormer 
would not read as a subordinate roof form within the rear roof slope of the terrace 
as a whole. It would be more visible, given its more solid and unbroken form and 
is considered to be harmful to the amenities and values of the property itself and 
to the wider surrounding area. 

7.11. Views of the rear roofslope of the appeal property and its neighbours are readily 
visible from the public footpath to the east of the site and therefore an elongated 
dormer across most of the rear of the appeal property would be very apparent 
causing significant harm to the amenities and values of the area. 

7.12. A case has been advanced by the appellant in support of their appeal. This 
includes photographs of 3 examples of a dormer windows. Two in Great Ganett 
and one in Howlands. The specific numbers of these properties have not been 
given, but your officers are aware of consent being granted for elongated 
dormers in Great Ganett within the EM area. However, each case must be 
considered on its own merits and the examples provided by the appellant are not 
located within the same group of terraced properties and are not directly 
comparable situations and so should not hold significant weight in any 
assessment.

7.13. In addition, photographs of the rear of the appeal site are provided by the 
applicant. The appellant states that “it would be no visual difference in the two 
separate dormers or one single dormer”.  

7.14. It is considered that one elongated dormer would be more visually intrusive than 
two separate dormer given its larger size and more solid and bulky form. From 
this public view point to the rear, the more solid roof form of the elongated dormer 
on the appeal property and as part of the terrace as a whole would be very 
apparent and would result in a more dominating form of development. 

Page 7



7.15. In addition, the height of the elongated dormer would be at the ridge height of the 
main roof and not set down. This is an unwelcome design. It is good design 
practice to set any such roof additions down from the main roof ridge so that the 
addition can read as a subordinate element on the roof slope. 

7.16. The appellant comments on this design by saying “We are unable to have a 
pitched roof or lower the roof line further, as we are already having to lower first 
floor ceilings inside the property to allow for enough headroom in the loft room. 
Every millimetre will count.  The room will be fairly small inside and the design of 
a straight across dormer will make such a huge difference to us inside the house, 
giving us that little bit more space”. However, it is considered that such a dormer 
is not appropriate and should not be allowed for the sake of internal 
modifications. 

7.17. A compelling case has not been made by the appellant to demonstrate why the 
circumstances advanced by the occupants of this particular property, when 
considered in its context, should override the wider values and amenities of this 
part of Howlands and the surrounding streetscene. The fall-back position of two 
separate dormer windows is considered a more appropriate form of development 
for this terrace. 

8. Conclusion

8.1.The rear dormer window would be unacceptable by virtue of its width, scale and 
siting on the rear roof slope of the dwelling which is overtly visible from an number 
of properties in the area and from the public footpath to the east. The dormer 
would result in a visually discordant and incongruous feature that would be 
detrimental to the appearance of the house and wider area, failing to maintain 
and enhance the amenities and values of the Garden City in accordance with 
Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme.

9. Recommendation

9.1. That the Members uphold the delegated decision and dismiss the appeal.

Name of author Sarah Madyausiku 01707 357378

Title Development Management Officer

Date  20 December 2018

Background papers:

Appendix 1: Appellant’s grounds of appeal

Appendix 2: Original delegated officer’s report

Appendix 3: The July 2018 consent for two rear dormers- approved elevation

Page 8



Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Emma Graham

From: Tara Walton 

Sent: 03 November 2018 16:19

To: Planning

Cc: Boe Walton

Subject: Appeal for 348 Howlands Loft Conversion - application number 6/2018/1861/EM

WARNING: This email originated outside the WHBC Network. Please be extra vigilant when opening 
attachments or clicking links. 
. 

Dear Sir/ Madam,

We would like to appeal the refused decision from the Estate Management Scheme with regards to the single 
dormer at 348 Howlands (application number 6/2018/1861/EM). Our previous application (6/2018/1326/EM) was 

approved on the 9th July. I have attached both drawings.

The difference between the two applications is the joining of the two dormers to make one larger dormer. The 
dormer would not be any wider on the roof, than the original double dormers.  The additional space requested 
between the two dormers is less than 1.47m.

Refusal has been given on the grounds of the dormer being “overtly visible from a number of properties” “and the 
public footpath”. However the same was true of the original plans which have been approved and there have been 
no objections from the surrounding neighbours. We have attached two photographs of the rear of our property, 
from the view of the aforementioned footpath. Photo 1 is the only small gap in the hedge line where you can see 
the rear of the property from a distance. Photo 2 is of the footpath. It would be no visual difference in the two 
separate dormers or one single dormer. The rear of the property is not visible from any road at all. There are a 
number of properties within the EMS that already have double dormers attached. I have included three photos of 
houses where the full dormers have been completed. these dormer are fully visible from the main road. "Dormer1" 
is on Howlands, a little further down from our house. "dormer2" and "dormer3" are on Great Gannett and are 
clearly visible from Cole Green Lane, not only are they overtly visible from a number properties but also the public 
pavements and roads.   

We feel the single dormer would be less conspicuous as it would actually cast less shadows on the roof. We would 
be happy to tile the dormer, using matching roof tiles to blend in with the existing roof. We will ensure all materials 
are in keeping with the existing building and surrounding area as per Policy EM1.  We would be happy to consider 
any other suggestions the council may have.  In the refused application, we have not changed the size or position of 
the windows and we would not be over-looking anyone any more than the original plans.

Page 11



2

We are unable to have a pitched roof or lower the roof line further, as we are already having to lower first floor 
ceilings inside the property to allow for enough headroom in the loft room. Every millimetre will count. The room 
will be fairly small inside and the design of a straight across dormer will make such a huge difference to us inside the 
house, giving us that little bit more space. 

The added extension to the house, rather than being “detrimental”, as suggested, would instead be beneficial 
adding not only financial value to the house and area but also as a reflection of the values of the Garden City, as an 
area for growing families. In its own words, the very purpose of the EMS is  'to be administered for the purpose of 
maintaining and enhancing amenities....... with due regard to the convenience and welfare of persons 
residing....there'

We hope you will reconsider our application and we look forward to hearing from yourselves.

Yours faithfully,

Mrs Tara Walton and Mr Boe Walton

Page 12



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - PLANNING, PUBLIC PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE

DELEGATED APPLICATION

Application No: 6/2018/1861/EM
Location: 348 Howlands Welwyn Garden City AL7 4HD
Proposal: Installation of 1 x rear dormer to facilitate extension of existing loft
Officer:  Mrs Sarah Madyausiku

Recommendation: Refused

6/2018/1861/EM
Context
Site and 
Application 
description

No.348 Howlands is a mid-terrace dwelling located on the north side of the 
road.  

The proposal is to form one elongated rear dormer window. This follows an 
application that was granted Estate Management consent in July 2018 (ref: 
6/2018/1326/EM) for two individual rear dormers.

Constraints Estate Management Scheme, as defined within the Leasehold Reform Act 
1967

Relevant history
Application Number: 6/2018/1326/EM Decision: Granted Decision 
Date: 09 July 2018
Proposal: Construction of 2 x rear dormer windows to facilitate extension of 
existing loft conversion

Notifications
Neighbour 
representations

Support: 0 Object: 0 Other: 0

Summary of 
neighbour 
responses

None

Relevant Policies

EM1  EM2  EM3
Others         

Considerations
Design (form, 
size, scale, siting) 
and Character 
(impact upon 
amenities and 
values of Garden 
City)

The Estate Management Scheme seeks to preserve the amenity and values of 
the Garden City. Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme applies. This 
seeks to preserve the unique architectural heritage of the town and its 
buildings.

For roof alterations such as dormer windows, the Council has approved a new 
policy approach within the EM area which includes that consent will only be 
granted if the proposed alteration, when viewed from any surrounding public 
vantage point does not have a detrimental impact on the character and 
appearance of the street scene and the wider amenities and values of the 

Page 13



2 of 3

area. 

The application site is within a terrace numbered 342-366 Howlands. The rear 
roofline is visible from numerous rear gardens and also from the public 
footpath that runs to the east of the site (adjacent to number 342 Howlands). 
Therefore the proposed dormer window would be visible from many properties 
that surround the site and from public amenity space. 

The proposed rear dormer window would measure at approximately 5.2m in 
width and be set in 0.74m on the west side and 0.94m on the east side of the 
party walls of the adjoining properties. Its height would be at the ridge height of 
the main roof and not set down. 

It is noted that in July 2018 application, which assessed two individual dormer 
windows, the officer’s report stated: The proposed rear dormers would not be 
visible from public vantage points.  The appearance isn’t overbearing to the 
rear as two smaller dormers are proposed rather than one large dormer on a 
mid-terrace dwelling.  It is clear from this assessment that a larger dormer was 
not considered appropriate here. 

In conclusion, the proposed dormer window, as a result of its overall size, 
scale and sitting, would dominate the roof of the dwelling and would not 
appear subservient to the roof of the main dwelling or the terrace as a whole. 
The proposal would alter the appearance of the dwelling to an extent that 
would be unacceptable within the Estate Management Area and would fail to 
maintain and enhance the values and amenities of Welwyn Garden City.

Impact on 
neighbours

The proposal would not have a detrimental impact on the amenity of adjoining 
occupiers and would accord with Policy EM1 in this regard. Although views of 
the rear gardens of the properties immediately behind the application site 
would be gained, this relationship is considered to be similar to the views 
already gained from the first floor windows at the host dwelling.  

Conclusion
The proposal fails to maintain and enhance the amenities and values of the Garden City and is 
therefore not compliant with the Estate Management Scheme.

Reasons for Refusal: 

1. The rear dormer window would be unacceptable by virtue of its width, scale and 
siting on the rear roof slope of the dwelling which is overtly visible from an number 
of properties in the area and from the public footpath to the east. The dormer would 
result in a visually discordant and incongruous feature that would be detrimental to 
the appearance of the house and wider area, failing to maintain and enhance the 
amenities and values of the Garden City in accordance with Policy EM1 of the 
Estate Management Scheme.

REFUSED DRAWING NUMBERS

2.
Plan 
Number

Revision 
Number

Details Received Date

4416-OS1 Location Plan 16 July 2018
4416-E01 A Plans & Elevations As 

Existing
1 August 2018

Page 14



3 of 3

4416-OS2 Block Plan 16 July 2018
4416_P01 D Plans & Elevations As 

Proposed
1 August 2018

1. POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE STATEMENT

The decision has been made taking into account, where practicable and 
appropriate the requirements of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework and material planning considerations do not justify a decision contrary 
to the development plan (see Officer’s report which can be viewed on the Council's 
website or inspected at these offices).

Determined By:

Mr Chris Carter
27 September 2018

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



UP

KITCHENLOUNGE

HALL

PLAY ROOM

BATH

BED-1

BED-2MASTER BED

C

C

C

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN LOFT PLAN ROOF PLAN

BED

ENSUITE

3
5

4
0

3540 1566

3
0

1
9

SIDE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION
FRONT ELEVATION

April 20181:100

4416-P01

PLANS AND ELEVATIONS

AS PROPOSED

PLANNING

P r o j e c t :

Drawing Title:

Drawing No :

Scale:

Revision:

Checked:

Date:

Drg Status:

Drawn By:

HOME EXTENSION DESIGNS

60 BRIDGE ROAD EAST

WELWYN GARDEN CITY

HERTS   AL7 1JU

tel : 01707 393971

fax : 01707 393980

e:stuartc@hed.co.uk

348 Howlands, Welwyn Garden City

B

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



                        Part I
 Main Author: Kerrie Charles

Executive Member: Stephen Boulton

           Wards: Howlands

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ESTATE MANAGEMENT SCHEME PANEL – 30 JANUARY 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE)

6/2018/2537/EM

1 MIDDLEFIELD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY   AL7 4DQ

REMOVAL OF CHIMNEY STACK

APPLICANT: Mr A. Clark

1. Background

1.1. The appeal is against the refusal of Estate Management Consent for the 
“Removal of chimney stack”. The application (reference: 6/2018/2537/EM) was 
refused on the 09 November 2018 for the following reason:

“The demolition of the chimney stack is considered to be inappropriate and out 
of keeping with the style of the host dwelling and Middlefield and Boundary 
Lane. The proposed development would detract from the character and 
appearance of the host dwelling and neighbouring properties and fails to 
maintain and enhance the amenities and values of this part of the Garden City 
and is therefore not compliant with policy EM1 of the Estate Management 
Scheme and the Council’s approach to roof alterations”.

2. Site Description

2.1 The appeal site, No.1 Middlefield is a two storey yellow brick detached dwelling.  
The site is enclosed by a boundary hedge with an attached garage to the side.  
Middlefield is located off Boundary Lane.

3. The Proposal

3.1. The proposal seeks Estate Management Consent to remove the chimney stack.

4. Relevant Estate Management History

4.1 Application Number: E6/1973/5079/ Decision: No Information
Decision Date: 10 March 1975
Proposal: Ground floor side extension, garage and access.

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



5. Policy

5.1. Estate Management Scheme Policies (October 2008)

EM1 – Extensions and Alterations

6. Representations Received

6.1. No representations have been received.

7. Discussion

7.1. This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Consent. The 
appellant’s letter of appeal is attached at Appendix 1 and the original officer’s 
report for application referenced 6/2018/1329/EM is attached at Appendix 2.

7.2. The key issue in the determination of this appeal is the impact of the proposed 
development upon the amenities and values of the Garden City. 

7.3. In recognition of the importance of Welwyn Garden City as a unique town and 
in order to protect the amenities and values of the Garden City, the Estate 
Management Scheme was set up. The purpose of the Estate Management 
Scheme and its importance to homeowners is to ensure that homes and street 
scenes are kept in harmony with the original design and concept of the town.

7.4. Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme (EMS) refers to extensions and 
alterations, and states that extensions and alterations will only be allowed 
where the works are in keeping with the design, appearance, materials and 
architectural detail used in the existing building, and would not harm the 
amenities and values of the area.

7.5. In order to be able to respond to the large amount for requests for roof 
alterations and energy efficiency measures such as Solar PV panels, following 
public consultation the council has approved a new Policy approach within the 
Welwyn Garden Estate Management Scheme Areas to deal with roof 
alterations and this is as follows:

 Estate Management Consent will only be granted for energy efficiency 
measures and other roof alterations where they are sited on the rear or side 
roof slope and are sited to minimise the effect on the external appearance 
of the building.

 Estate Management Consent will only be granted if the proposed alteration, 
when viewed from any surrounding public vantage point does not have a 
detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the streetscene and 
the wider amenities and values of the area.

 Exceptions to this Policy approach will apply where, in the judgement of the 
case officer the architectural design and style of an individual property or the 
wider character of the area means that an alteration on a principal roof slope 
of a property would not have a detrimental impact on the character and 
appearance of the streetscene and wider amenities and values of the area.

Page 20



 In all cases the decision maker will continue to weigh the environmental 
benefits of energy efficiency measures against the visual impact.

This above approach applies to the installation of Solar PV, Thermal equipment, 
wind turbines, flues, new chimneys, dormer windows, roof lights, sunpipes, 
aerials and antenna and any other alterations to the roof of a property covered 
by the Estate Management Scheme.

7.6 Middlefield is characterised with a mixture of detached, semi-detached and 
terraced properties many having regularly spaced brick built chimneys.

7.7 The demolition of the chimney stack is considered to be inappropriate and out 
of keeping in this part of the streetscene, detracting from the character and 
appearance of the host dwelling and neighbouring properties and failing to 
maintain and enhance the amenities and values of this part of the Garden City 
and is therefore not compliant with policy EM1 of the Estate Management 
Scheme and the Council’s approach to roof alterations.

7.8 The development would not preserve the unique architectural heritage of the 
town as it causes harm to the character and appearance of the building and the 
street scene. Thus resulting in a harm to the amenities and values of the Garden 
City contrary to Policy EM1. 

7.9 A case has been advanced by the appellant in support of the appeal. The 
grounds of appeal state that “Nos. 1 and 2 Middlefield are distinct in design 
terms from other properties on Middlefield, being detached, and with chimneys 
that are barely visible from the street (being situated on the rear roof slope). 
Other properties on the street are terraced and have prominent chimneys on 
the ridge line of the roof. In the context of Middlefield, it appears that Nos. 1 and 
2 have already had their chimneys removed.

7.10 The nearby buildings on Boundary Lane are quite different in design terms to 
the houses on Middlefield, being of red brick, semi-detached and with chimneys 
on or close to the ridge line. No. 1 Middlefield is set back over 7 metres from 
the building line of properties on Boundary Lane. The result is that No. 1 
Middlefield has a diminished relationship with the houses on Boundary Lane. 

7.11 Although the existing chimney of No. 1 Middlefield is visible from some points 
along Boundary Lane it does not contribute to the street scene as it is set so far 
back from the building line. Also, its view is partially obscured by trees that are 
unlikely to be removed due to their amenity value. (The attached photos actually 
make the chimney look more prominent than it is, in reality, to passersby)”.

7.12 In regards to the two properties mentioned above, there is no Estate 
Management application history to suggest that either address have consent 
for the works and No.1 Middlefield still has a chimney stack installed on the rear 

Page 21



roof slope.   As previously stated the Chimney is visible within Boundary Lane 
and slightly from the street scene within Middlefield.

7.13 A compelling justification has not therefore been made by the appellant to 
demonstrate why the circumstances advanced by the appellants of this 
particular property, when considered in its context, should override the wider 
values and amenities of Middlefield, Boundary Lane and the Garden City.  
Accordingly, the proposal fails to reflect the character and appearance of the 
property to which it is located and the wider street scene of Middlefield and 
Boundary Lane. The proposed development therefore fails to maintain the 
amenities and values of the Estate Management Area.

8. Conclusion

8.1. No additional evidence or information has been put forward by the appellant 
which adds to or would alter officer’s recommendation.  The proposed removal 
of the chimney in a prominent location within Middlefield, would be 
unacceptable and have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance 
of the appeal property, the row of terrace properties in which it is located and 
the surrounding street scene. Therefore it would cause harm to the values and 
amenities of the area and the proposal fails to accord with Policy EM1 of the 
Welwyn Garden City Estate Management Scheme. 

9. Recommendation

9.1. That the Members uphold the delegated decision and dismiss the appeal.

Name of author Kerrie Charles 01707 357253 

Title Assistant Planning and Enforcement Officer

Date  4 December 2018

Background papers:

Appendix 1: Appellants grounds of appeal

Appendix 2: Original delegated officer’s report

Page 22



Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 

HAMILTON design + surveying 

5 Redwood Close 

Willow Crescent 

ST. ALBANS, AL1 5FP 

Email: enquiries@hamiltonds.co.uk 

Phone: 07850 888172 

 Date: 23/11/2018 

Ref: 0545/welhatBC/Appeal 

  

Planning Department 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

The Campus 

Welwyn Garden City 

AL8 6AE 

Via Email: planning@welhat.gov.uk 

 

Re: Appeal (Estate Management Scheme Refusal of Estate Management Consent) – Proposed removal of 

chimney stack, 1 Middlefield, Welwyn Garden City, AL7 4DQ 

Dear Sir/Madam: 

I am writing to appeal against the following decision: 

Application No: 6/2018/2537/EM 

Date of Refusal: 9 November 2018 

Development: Removal of chimney stack 

At Location: 1 Middlefield Welwyn Garden City AL7 4DQ 

Applicant: Mr A Clark 

Application Date: 3 October 2018 

The reason given for the refusal was that the removal of the chimney stack is “considered to be inappropriate 

and out of keeping with the style of the host dwelling and Middlefield and Boundary Lane.” 

Grounds for appeal 

1. It is acknowledged that chimneys are a feature of both Middlefield and Boundary Lane. 

2. Nos. 1 and 2 Middlefield are distinct in design terms from other properties on Middlefield, being 

detached, and with chimneys that are barely visible from the street (being situated on the rear roof 

slope). Other properties on the street are terraced and have prominent chimneys on the ridge line of 

the roof. In the context of Middlefield, it appears that Nos. 1 and 2 have already had their chimneys 

removed. 

3. The nearby buildings on Boundary Lane are quite different in design terms to the houses on 

Middlefield, being of red brick, semi-detached and with chimneys on or close to the ridge line. No. 1 

Middlefield is set back over 7 metres from the building line of properties on Boundary Lane. The result 

is that No. 1 Middlefield has a diminished relationship with the houses on Boundary Lane. 

4. Although the existing chimney of No. 1 Middlefield is visible from some points along Boundary Lane 

it does not contribute to the street scene as it is set so far back from the building line. Also, its view is 

partially obscured by trees that are unlikely to be removed due to their amenity value. (The attached 

photos actually make the chimney look more prominent than it is, in reality, to passesrby.) 

Conclusion 

Although chimneys are a recognized feature of the street scene in Middlefield and Boundary Lane, the 

removal of the chimney to No. 1 Middlefield would neither affect the street scene nor create a precedent 

Page 25



Middlefield Elevation from opposite side of road 

(Image copyright Hamilton design + surveying 2018) 

Boundary Lane Elevations (3 images, left to right) 

(Images copyright Google 2018) 

justifying the removal of other chimneys in the vicinity. On this basis our appeal is presented to you for your 

consideration. 

Yours sincerely, 

 

Simon Hamilton 

(Agent, on behalf of the applicant, Mr A. Clark) 

HAMILTON design + surveying 

e. simon@hamiltonds.co.uk 

m. 07850 888172 

 

 

 

 

 

v 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 26



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - PLANNING, PUBLIC PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE

DELEGATED APPLICATION

Application No: 6/2018/2537/EM
Location: 1 Middlefield Welwyn Garden City AL7 4DQ
Proposal: Removal of chimney stack
Officer:  Mrs Kerrie Charles

Recommendation: Refused

6/2018/2537/EM
Context
Site and 
Application 
description

No.1 Middlefield is a two storey yellow brick detached dwelling.
The site is enclosed by a boundary hedge with an attached garage to the side,

The proposal is to remove a chimney stack.  The Chimney stack is within the 
rear roofslope of the dwelling.

Constraints Estate Management Scheme, as defined within the Leasehold Reform Act 
1967

Relevant history Planning

Application Number: E6/1973/5079/ Decision: No Information Decision 
Date: 10 March 1975
Proposal: Ground floor side extension, garage and access.

Notifications
Neighbour 
representations

Support: 0 Object: 0 Other: 0

Summary of 
neighbour 
responses

None received

Consultee 
responses

None received 

Relevant Policies

EM1  EM2  EM3
Others         

Considerations
Design (form, 
size, scale, siting) 
and Character 
(impact upon 
amenities and 
values of Garden 
City)

The proposal seeks consent to remove the existing brick chimney stack from 
the roof of a detached dwelling situated on a corner plot on the junction of 
Boundary Lane and Middlefield.  The existing chimney is installed on the rear 
roof slope and mostly clearly visible from Boundary Lane rather than from 
Middlefield however, such chimney stacks are a key characteristic of dwellings 
in Middlefield and Boundary Lane within the surrounding area.  

The demolition of the chimney stack without a suitable replacement of a similar 

Page 27



2 of 2

appearance, is considered to be inappropriate and out of keeping with the style 
of the host dwelling and this part of the streetscene.  The proposed 
development would therefore detract from the character and appearance of the 
host dwelling and wider area and fails to maintain or enhance the amenities 
and values of this part of the Garden City and is not therefore considered to be 
compliant with policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme and the 
Council’s approach to roof alterations.

Impact on 
neighbours

Taking into consideration the proposal, the removal of the chimney stack 
would have no impact of the amenity of neighbouring properties.

Landscaping 
issues (incl. 
hardstandings)

N/A

Any other 
considerations 

None 

Conclusion
The demolition of the chimney stack is considered to be inappropriate and out of keeping with the 
style of the host dwelling and Middlefield and Boundary Lane. The proposed development would 
detract from the character and appearance of the host dwelling and neighbouring properties and fails 
to maintain and enhance the amenities and values of this part of the Garden City and is therefore not 
compliant with policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme and the Council’s approach to roof 
alterations.

Reasons for Refusal: 

1. The demolition of the chimney stack is considered to be inappropriate and out of 
keeping with the style of the host dwelling and Middlefield and Boundary Lane. The 
proposed development would detract from the character and appearance of the 
host dwelling and neighbouring properties and fails to maintain and enhance the 
amenities and values of this part of the Garden City and is therefore not compliant 
with policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme and the Council’s approach to 
roof alterations.

REFUSED DRAWING NUMBERS

2.
Plan 
Number

Revision 
Number

Details Received Date

0545-001 Location and Block Plan 3 October 2018
0545-130 Roof Plan 3 October 2018
0545-200 Front and Rear Elevations 3 October 2018
0545-201 Side Elevations 3 October 2018

Determined By:

Mr Michael Robinson
9 November 2018

Page 28



 Part I
               Main author: Sarah Madyausiku

Executive Member: Stephen Boulton
    Wards: Howlands 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ESTATE MANAGEMENT SCHEME PANEL - 30 January 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE)

6/2018/2063/EM 

5 HOWICKS GREEN WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL7 4RJ

REPLACE POLYCARBONATE CONSERVATORY ROOF WITH LIGHTWEIGHT 
TILED ROOF

APPLICANT: G. Ghumania

1. Background

1.1 The appeal is against the refusal of Estate Management (EM) Consent for the 
replacement of a polycarbonate conservatory roof with lightweight tiled roof. The 
application (reference: 6/2018/2063/EM) was refused on the 22 October 2018 for 
the following reason:

“The proposal, by virtue of its solid pitched roof design and form, would not be in 
keeping with the character and appearance of the application property and the 
surrounding properties and streetscene. It would fail to represent high quality 
design, and would be detrimental to the amenities and values of the Garden City. 
Accordingly, the proposal would be contrary to Policy EM1 of the Estate 
Management Scheme.”

2. Site Description

2.1 The application site is a two storey mid terrace dwelling house, located on the 
eastern side of Howicks Green; close to the junction with Howlands. The property 
has an existing conservatory with a pitched, polycarbonate roof at the rear of the 
property. The application property is located in a row of 8 terraced houses. There 
is one other rear conservatory within terrace. The rear of this terrace, and the 
application property itself, is open to public views from Queen Avenue at the rear. 

3. The Proposal

3.1 The applicant’s proposal is to “Replace polycarbonate conservatory roof with 
lightweight tiled roof improving energy consumption, heat control, aesthetic 
appearance and eliminating light pollution at night”.

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



4. Policy

4.1. Estate Management Scheme Policies (October 2008)

EM1 – Extensions and Alterations

5. Representations Received

5.1.  No representations have been received.

6. Discussion

6.1. This is an appeal against the refusal of EM consent. The appellant’s letter of 
appeal is attached at Appendix 1, and the original officer’s report for application 
reference 6/2018/2063/EM, is attached at Appendix 2.

6.2. The key issue in the determination of this appeal is the impact of the proposed 
replacement roof on the conservatory on the values and amenities of the 
surrounding area. The impact on the residential amenity of adjoining occupiers 
is considered acceptable.

6.3. In recognition of the importance of Welwyn Garden City as a unique town and in 
order to protect the amenities and values of the Garden City, the Estate 
Management Scheme was set up. The purpose of the Management Scheme and 
its importance to homeowners is to ensure that homes and street scenes are 
kept in harmony with the original design and concept of the town. 

6.4. Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme (EMS) states that extensions 
and alterations to existing buildings will only be allowed if they are in keeping with 
the design, appearance, materials and architectural detailing used in the existing 
building and do not have a detrimental impact on the amenities and values of the 
surrounding area. 

6.5. The appeal property is located within a terrace of 8 similarly designed properties. 
There are 2 rear conservatories within the group of 8.  

6.6. Policy EM1 aims for alterations to be in keeping with the existing property and to 
not harm the values and amenities of the area. It is therefore important that the 
uniformity in appearance of dwellings is maintained; in particular those features 
which are visible from the street scene.  

6.7. The refusal relates specifically to the introduction of a more solid form of roof to 
an existing conservatory extension. In the Garden City single storey extensions 
are generally expected to be designed with a flat roof which would limit the impact 
of the development on the rear elevation and maintain a consistency with the 
design and appearance of single storey extensions.  Generally, extensions with 
solid pitch roof forms are not considered consistent with the style of flat roofed 
single storey extensions which are prolific within Welwyn Garden City’s Estates 
Management areas.

6.8. The quality of the architecture in this terrace of 8 dwellings has generally been 
maintained. The two conservatory additions that exist are of a typical 

Page 30



conservatory design, consisting of glass panels which are lightweight and 
transparent, subsequently having little contribution to the overall bulk and mass 
of the structure. The appeal property itself features a pitched roof with opaque 
roof panels. These opaque panels are not see-through, but the material is still 
lightweight and they still maintain the typical lightweight appearance of a 
conservatory. 

6.9. In contrast, the introduction of a more solid roof form would no longer read as a 
lightweight roof form. It would become more visible, given its more solid form 
becoming harmful to the amenities and values of the property itself and to the 
wider surrounding area. The existing conservatory (and the rear of this terrace) 
is readily visible from Queen Avenue and therefore causes harm to the values 
and amenities of the area. 

6.10. A case has been advanced by the appellant in support of their appeal. This 
includes a photograph of an example of a solid roof on a conservatory. This gives 
an example of the proposed roof form, but it is not known where this photograph 
was taken and whether it is with the EMS. Each case must be considered on its 
own merits and the example provided by the appellant does not present the same 
architectural context as the one that is the subject of this appeal.

6.11. The appellant also suggests in support of the appeal that “This proposal is in 
keeping with the character and appearance of the application property, as the 
roof would be brown, the same colour as the house roofs and so would blend in 
considerably better than the current white plastic roof”. 

6.12. In addition, a photograph of the rear of the appeal site is also provided and 
reference made to the new development at the old QEII site. The appellant states 
that this new housing development on the old QEII site is not in keeping with the 
streetscene. He goes onto say that that “absolutely nothing can be seen of the 
conservatory, or its roof, from the road”.  

6.13. The old QE11 development site is not located within the EMS so this is not 
considered comparable with the proposed development. With regard to the 
appellant’s views that the rear of the site is not seen from public views in Queens 
Avenue, this is not correct, as clear views of the entire rear of the terrace can be 
seen here. Existing garden structures and timber fencing do not obscure views 
of the existing conservatory. From these public views, the more solid roof form 
of the proposal on this rear elevation, would be very apparent and the proposal 
would result in a more dominating form of development. 

6.14. A compelling case has not been made by the appellant to demonstrate why the 
circumstances advanced by the occupants of this particular property, when 
considered in its context, should override the wider values and amenities of 
Howicks Green and the surrounding streetscene.

7. Conclusion

7.1. The proposal would fail to enhance the appearance of the existing property given 
its pitched roof design with a more solid roof form. The proposal would appear 

Page 31



out of keeping with the property and the surrounding terrace of properties and 
form an overly dominant form to the rear of the dwelling which is unacceptable. 

7.2. The proposal, by virtue of its solid pitched roof design, would not be in keeping 
with the character and appearance of the application property and the 
surrounding terraced properties and street scene.  It would fail to represent high 
quality design, and would be detrimental to the amenities and values of the 
Garden City.  Accordingly, the proposal would be contrary to Policy EM1 of the 
Estate Management Scheme. 

8. Recommendation

8.1. That the Members uphold the delegated decision and dismiss the appeal.

Name of author Sarah Madyausiku 

Title Development Management Officer

Date  20 December 2018

Background papers:

Appendix 1: Appellant’s grounds of appeal

Appendix 2: Original delegated officer’s report

Page 32



Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Dear Sir/Madam, 
  
I would like to appeal against the refusal decision made on our Estate
Management application, your reasons as follows:-

1. The proposal, by virtue of its solid pitched roof design and form, would not be in
keeping with the character and appearance of the application property and the
surrounding properties and streetscene. It would fail to represent high quality
design, and would be detrimental to the amenities and values of the Garden City.
Accordingly, the proposal would be contrary to Policy EM1 of the Estate
Management Scheme.

This proposal is in keeping with the character and appearance of the application
property, as the roof would be brown, the same colour as the house roofs and so
would blend in considerably better than the current white plastic roof (please see
attached photos).  It would also tone in so much better with the greens and browns
of the surrounding trees and not look so out of place next to a conservation area
(The Commons). The summer house that we have in our garden is also dark
brown and so it would tone in with that.  The summer house also has a pitched
roof and so the new proposed roof would certainly be more in keeping with the
application property, rather than a flat roofed extension, which was someone
else’s rather unhelpful suggestion.  Currently at night the neighbour's view of our
conservatory is like a lighthouse but with the new roof, this light pollution would be
eliminated.  It really does look an awful sight.

With regard to the surrounding properties, the council sold the old QEII land to
Bellway Housing and the 160 or so houses that they have built are definitely not in
keeping with the character and appearance of the neighbouring and surrounding
properties of the area.  With regard to the streetscene, the conservatory is to the
rear of the property and isn’t on any street – it is simply an access road which
leads to the new Bellway Housing estate.  Prior to the sale of the land to Bellway,
this also was not a street but an access road to the Isabel hospice.  There are no
houses to the rear of the property, it is just a road that people drive through and
even if you were walking along the road, absolutely nothing can be seen of the
conservatory, or its roof, from the road, as the cabin obstructs this view, as does
the 6 foot fence.

Page 35



The new roof would be a proprietary roof covering, which will incorporate a light
weight tile effect roof (not tile and baton as conventional roofs).  We are at present
looking at roofs such as Cosyroof and other similar equivalents, which are
approved suppliers and take into account the thermal requirements of today’s
construction methods. It is a high quality design that we are looking at which is an
approved and encouraged replacement by the government, who actually allow a
15% tax deduction to be taken off the bill for the benefits to the environment.  The
conservatory is currently unusable in the cold of winter and also in the heat of the
summer.  When we moved into the property 9 years ago we invested in roof blinds
but they have proven to be ineffective.

This proposal will enable the space to be usable as the internal temperature will
be controlled and heat will be retained, unlike today.

We would appreciate if you could reconsider your decision and grant permission
for this change so our family can be warm this Christmas.

Thanks and kind regards 
Gian Ghumania 

  ________________________________  

Sent: 22 October 2018 16:22

Subject: Planning Application 6/2018/2063/EM - 5 Howicks Green Welwyn Garden City
AL7 4RJ 
  
Please see the attached Decision Notice
 
 
Kind regards
 
Ms Ida Moesner
Planning Support Officer
Welwyn Hatfield Council
Welwyn Garden City
AL8 6AE
Tel No - 01707 357516
Email – i.moesner@welhat.gov.uk <mailto:i.moesner@welhat.gov.uk>
 
Working better, together

Page 36

mailto:i.moesner@welhat.gov.uk


 
www.welhat.gov.uk <http://www.welhat.gov.uk/>
@WelHatCouncil <http://www.twitter.com/WelHatCouncil> 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council <http://www.facebook.com/welwynhatfield/> 
  

Please consider the environment before printing this email. 
You can report missed bins, abandoned vehicles, fly-tipping, litter, graffiti and flyposting
as well as tell us about problems with litter and dog bins Online. The information in this
email is intended for the named recipients only. It may be subject to public disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. Unless the information is legally exempt from
disclosure, the confidentiality of this email and your reply cannot be guaranteed.
This email and any attachments may contain confidential information and intellectual
property (including copyright material). It is only for the use of the addressee(s) in
accordance with any instructions contained within it. Please treat any personal and
sensitivity data that may be contained within this email in accordance with the
requirements of the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR). Such data should only be
processed and retained where there is a legitimate need to do so. Should you have a
legitimate need to share this information please make the recipient aware of their
responsibilities for handling this data in accordance with the GDPR. If you are not the
addressee, you are prohibited from copying, forwarding, disclosing, saving or otherwise
using it in any way. If you receive this email in error, please immediately advise the sender
and delete it. Sopra Steria may monitor the content of emails within Welwyn Hatfield
Council?s network to ensure compliance with the Council?s policies and procedures.
Emails are susceptible to alteration and their integrity (including origin) cannot be assured.
Welwyn Hatfield Council and Steria shall not be liable for any modification to a message,
or for messages falsely sent.

The full Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council email disclaimer can be viewed at
www.welhat.gov.uk/emaildisclaimer. 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is committed to protecting your privacy when you use
our services. The Privacy Notice below explains how we use information about you and
how we protect your privacy. http://www.welhat.gov.uk/privacy-notice

    

Page 37

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/
http://www.twitter.com/WelHatCouncil
http://www.facebook.com/welwynhatfield/
http://www.welhat.gov.uk/privacy-notice


This page is intentionally left blank



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - PLANNING, PUBLIC PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE

DELEGATED APPLICATION

Application No: 6/2018/2063/EM
Location: 5 Howicks Green Welwyn Garden City AL7 4RJ
Proposal: Replace polycarbonate conservatory roof with lightweight tiled roof
Officer:  Mrs Sarah Madyausiku

Recommendation: Refused

6/2018/2063/EM
Context
Site and 
Application 
description

The application site is a two storey mid terrace dwelling house, located on the 
eastern side of Howicks Green; close to the junction with Howland’s. The 
property benefits from a conservatory at the rear of the property which is seen 
from public views from Queen Avenue. 

Constraints Estate Management Scheme, as defined within the Leasehold Reform Act 
1967

Relevant history
The conservatory was granted Estate Management consent in 2004. Ref: 
W6/2004/0677/EM.

Notifications
Neighbour 
representations

Support: 0 Object: 0 Other: 0

Summary of 
neighbour 
responses

None

Relevant Policies

EM1  EM2  EM3
Others         

Considerations
Does the design (form, size, scale, siting) and character (appearance within the streetscene) 
maintain and/or enhance the amenities and values of the area?

Yes No N/A
Comment (if required):     

Policy EM1 states: Extensions in the Garden City are typically designed with a flat roof. In this part of 
the Garden City the quality of the architecture has largely been maintained with flat-roof extensions 
and additions being a typical feature. In addition, within this area, there are examples of 
conservatory type extensions with differing roof forms. 

Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme (Extensions and Alterations) seeks to ensure that 
extensions and alterations to existing properties will only be allowed if they are in keeping with the 

Page 39



2 of 3

design, appearance, materials and architectural detailing used in the existing building.  That policy is 
there in order to preserve the unique architectural heritage of the town and its buildings and 
therefore the Council expects that all applications for extensions and alterations respect and do not 
harm the character and appearance of the building and the street scene. 

This proposal is to replace the existing polycarbonate conservatory roof with a new roof the same 
size and footprint. However the new roof would be a “lightweight tiled” roof rather than the 
polycarbonate panels as existing.

The introduction of a more solid sloping tiled roof, rather than the existing roof form would represent 
a more dominating development to the rear of this property that would be harmful to the amenities 
and values of the host property and to the surrounding terrace and area as a whole. The 
conservatory type extension, with the solid sloping roof, would be visible from public viewpoints as 
well as surrounding properties due to its location, causing additional harm. 

The proposal would fail to enhance the appearance of the existing property given its pitched roof 
design with a more solid roof form. The extension would appear out of keeping with the property and 
the surrounding properties and form an overly dominant form to the rear of the dwelling which is 
unacceptable. 

The proposal, by virtue of its pitched solid roof design, would fail to maintain and enhance the 
amenities and values of the Garden City. 

Does the development minimise impact on neighbours?
Yes No N/A

Comment (if required):    The proposal would not adversely affect the light amenity, privacy or 
increase overlooking between the host dwelling and neighbouring properties. The proposal would 
not be overbearing to neighbouring dwellings. 

Vehicle Hardstandings Only.  Sections (a) and (b) completed only if hardstanding proposed
(a) Would the hardstanding retain an appropriate balance between hard and soft 
landscaping?  

Yes No 
Comment (if required):      N/A

(b) Would only the minimum length of hedgerow required to access the hardstanding be 
removed?  (e.g. privacy, outlook, light etc.)

 Yes  No N/A
Comment (if required):      

Any other considerations 
None

Conclusion
The proposal is not reflective of the character and appearance of the dwelling, the terrace or the 
surrounding area and would have a detrimental impact on the amenities and values of the 
surrounding area and the Garden City as a whole. This conflicts with Policy EM1 of the Estate
Management Scheme.

Reasons for Refusal: 

1. The proposal, by virtue of its solid pitched roof design and form, would not be in 
keeping with the character and appearance of the application property and the 
surrounding properties and streetscene.  It would fail to represent high quality 
design, and would be detrimental to the amenities and values of the Garden City.  
Accordingly, the proposal would be contrary to Policy EM1 of the Estate 
Management Scheme.

Page 40



3 of 3

REFUSED DRAWING NUMBERS

2.
Plan 
Number

Revision
Number

Details Received Date

Location 
Plan

Location Plan 8 August 2018

Block Plan  Block Plan 28 August 2018
D4 Floor Plans 28 August 2018
D3 Rear Elevation 28 August 2018

Determined By:

Mr Chris Carter
22 October 2018

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 43

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 348 HOWLANDS WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL7 4HD - 6/2018/1861/EM - INSTALLATION OF 1 X REAR DORMER TO FACILITATE EXTENSION OF EXISTING LOFT
	1a. 348 Howlands Grounds Of appeal
	1b. Delegated Report Officers report 348 Howlands
	1c. two dormers approved 348 Howlands

	7 1 MIDDLEFIELD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY   AL7 4DQ - 6/2018/2537/EM - REMOVAL OF CHIMNEY STACK
	(1 a.) Grounds of Appeal
	(1 b. )Delegated Report_620182537EM(1)

	8 5 HOWICKS GREEN WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL7 4RJ - 6/2018/2063/EM - REPLACE POLYCARBONATE CONSERVATORY ROOF WITH LIGHTWEIGHT TILED ROOF
	(1a.) 5 howicks Gof A_Redacted
	(1b.) Delegated Report_5 howicks

	11 UPDATE ON OUTSTANDING ENFORCEMENT CASES AND RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ENFORCEMENT ACTION UNDER THE TERMS OF THE MANAGEMENT SCHEME FOR WELWYN GARDEN CITY FOR BREACHES OF THAT SCHEME



